
 
627 

 

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE PANEL 
 

Minutes from the Meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel held on 
Thursday, 4th January, 2024 at 5.00 pm in the Remote Meeting on Zoom and 
available for the public to view on WestNorfolkBC on You Tube - Zoom and 

You Tube 
 

PRESENT: Councillor S Dark (Chair) 
Councillors P Bland, F Bone, A Bubb, R Colwell, A Dickinson, B Jones, S Lintern, 

B Long, S Nash, J Osborne, C Rose, A Ryves, D Sayers and Mrs V Spikings 
 

Portfolio Holders: 
Councillor A Beales, Business 
Councillor M de Whalley, Climate Change and Biodiversity 
Councillor J Moriarty, Development and Regeneration 
Councillor C Morley, Finance 
Councillor S Ring, Tourism, Events and Marketing 
 
Under Standing Order 34: 
Councillor A Bubb (Zoom) 
Councillor R Colwell (Zoom) 
 
Officers: 
James Arrandale, Principal Solicitor (Zoom) 
Alexa Baker, Monitoring Officer 
Andrew Barrett, Electoral Services Manager (Zoom) 
Becky Box, Assistant Director, Central Services/Management Team 
Representative 
Michelle Drewery, Assistant Director, Resources (Zoom) 
Lorraine Gore, Chief Executive 
Ged Greaves, Climate Change Manager 
Oliver Judges, Executive Director, Place 
Jo Stanton, Revenues and Benefits Manager 
Wendy Vincent, Democratic Services Officer 
 
By Invitation: 
Greg Pearson, Norfolk Climate Change Partnership Manager (Zoom) 
 

CP87   APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Bhondi, F 
Bones, R Blunt,  A Bullen, J Collingham and P Devulapalli. 
 

CP88   MINUTES  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 



 
628 

 

The minutes of the Corporate Performance Panel held on 13 
November 2023 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 
 

CP89   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor A Ware declared an interest as a Director of West Norfolk 
Property Board and West Norfolk Housing Board. 
 
Councillor J Ratcliffe declared an interest as a Ward Councillor of West 
Norfolk Housing Company. 
 
Councillor A Dickinson declared a pecuniary interest as a second home 
owner in the Borough. 
 

CP90   URGENT BUSINESS UNDER STANDING ORDER 7  
 

There was no urgent business. 
 

CP91   MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34  
 

Councillors A Bubb and R Colwell via Zoom were present under 
Standing Order 34. 
 

CP92   CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE (IF ANY)  
 

There was no Chair’s correspondence. 
 

CP93   CALL-IN (IF ANY)  
 

There were no call-ins. 
 

CP94   CLIMATE CHANGE AND NORFOLK CLIMATE CHANGE 
PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
Members of the Environment and Community Panel were present for 
this item. 
 
The Climate Change Manager presented the report which provided an 
update on activities over the last 12 months and explained that 
following the May 2023 elections the Portfolio Holders group had been 
reformed and had an updated terms of reference. 
 
The Panel was advised that the partnership continued to be co-chaired 
by the Borough Council’s Chief Executive and the Chief Executive of 

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=475


 
629 

 

North Norfolk.  It was explained that the co-chairs championed the 
establishment of the partnership manager role and its resourcing, for 
an initial 12 months, from the Business Rates Pool and contributions 
from local authorities. 
 
The Climate Change Manager advised that a full time partnership 
manager commenced in July 2023 and was hosted by North Norfolk 
District Council.  The purpose of the role was to develop and maintain 
a comprehensive climate change policy programme which delivered 
the three strategic outcomes of the partnership set out at section 2.5 of 
the report. 
 
It was noted that Greg Pearson, Norfolk Climate Change Partnership 
Manager was in attendance via Zoom to answer any questions from 
the Panel. 
The Panel was informed that the partnership was successful in a bid 
for UK Innovate funding for the Norfolk Net Zero Communities project. 
 
Section 2.9 of the report set out the topics covered in partnership 
meetings over the last 12 months. 
 
Appendix A of the report set out the Revised Norfolk Climate Change 
Partnership structure. 
 
The Climate Change Manager explained that the partnership website 
was hosted by the Borough Council and updated by the Norfolk 
Climate Change Partnership Manager. 
 
In conclusion, the Climate Change Manager explained that Councillor 
de Whalley, Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Biodiversity 
received regular updates and highlighted that there were clear signs 
that the partnership had developed over the last 12 months. 
 
The Chair thanked the Climate Change Manager for the update report 
and invited Councillors attending under Standing Order 34 and the 
Portfolio Holder to address the Panel. 
 
There were no questions from Councillors attending under Standing 
Order 34. 
Councillor Mrs Spikings commented on the impact of flooding in 
Welney on residents and added that appropriate infrastructure was 
required. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Osborne on the 
announcement of  Norfolk Net Zero Communities project, the Climate 
Change Manager explained that the selection process had taken place 
and a parish had been identified and that a meeting would be 
scheduled in the future to talk about the project and obtain the support 
from the full Parish Council. 
 



 
630 

 

Following questions from Councillor Ryves on the measuring of carbon 
in different areas, the Climate Change Manager explained that the data 
was published by the Government Department for carbon net zero and 
was common data for local authorities in England.  It was explained 
that behind the data there was a complicated calculation for different 
data sets to obtain the end result on a common current level of carbon.  
The data was used by the Borough Council to benchmark against other 
comparable organisations. 
 
In response to questions from Councillor Long on the financial 
implications, the Chief Executive explained that the initial funding tor 
the Norfolk Climate Change Partnership Manager was from the 
District/borough level authority members of the partnership and each 
contributed towards the initial cost of the post together with funding 
from the Business Rates Pool agreed at the Norfolk Leader’s meeting.  
The Council’s contribution was funded via the corporate climate 
change reserve.  It was highlighted that the post was fixed term and 
that further funding would be required. 
 
The Climate Change Manager responded to questions from Councillor 
Nash on districts and communities assessing zero carbon emissions.   
 
The Climate Change Manager responded to questions and comments 
from Councillor Heneghan on the Norfolk Action Plan/tree planting 
schemes. 
 
Councillor Long sought reassurance that the work of the partnership 
over the past year would not have any detrimental impact on the 
residents of West Norfolk.  In response, the Chief Executive outlined 
the aim of the partnership and that the Norfolk Climate Change 
Partnership Manager was actively looking for funding opportunities. 
 
The Chair provided background to the agreement two years ago from 
all Councillors to declare a climate change emergency and to allocate a 
budget of £1m over 4 years.  The Chair commented that the Chief 
Executive had explained that there was co-ordination from Norfolk 
County Council and district councils.  The Chair explained that the 
Council had allocated £250,000 to green initiatives and asked how this 
could be brought forward outside the partnership and questioned which 
panel would be best place to explore this, Corporate Performance or 
Environment and Community Panel.  The Chair added that this could 
be looked at outside of the meeting to determine which policy and 
development panel should have the item on its work programme going 
forward. 
 
RESOLVED:  The Panel noted the annual update. 
 

CP95   CABINET REPORT:  CHANGES TO COUNCIL TAX PREMIUMS FOR 
SECOND AND LONG TERM EMPTY PROPERTIES  
 



 
631 

 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Environment and Community Panel and Regeneration and 
Development Panel was also present for this item. 
 
The Chair explained that the report would be split into two sections:  
Long Term Empty Homes and Second Homes to allow all Councillors 
to contribute to the Long Terms Empty Homes. 
 
Long Term Empty Homes 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager presented the report and 
explained that the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 introduced 
powers for billing authorities to charge the existing 100% premium for 
long term empty properties after one year, rather than the current 
period of two years, and to charge an additional council tax premium of 
up to 100% for second homes. 
 
The Panel was advised that for council tax purpose an empty property 
was defined as one which was unfurnished and no-one’s main home.  
A long-term empty property was one which had been empty for more 
than six months after any property exemptions had ended. 
 
It was explained that the Council currently charged a 100% premium 
once a long-term property had been empty for two years.  Section 79 of 
the Act now allowed the Council to charge the premium after one year 
from 1 April 2024.  This would mean a further 555 properties becoming 
liable for the 100% premium.  Further details were set out at section 3. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager advised that a resolution was 
required from Full Council by 31 March 2024 to implement the Act from 
1 April. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance commented that it was self-evident 
that this was an incentive to release homes for occupation and 
commended the report to the Panel to go forward to Cabinet and Full 
Council. 
 
The Chair invited Councillors under Standing Order 34 to address the 
Panel.   
 
There were no questions from Councillors attending under Standing 
Order 34. 
 
The Chair invited questions and comments from the Panels, a 
summary of which is set out below. 
 
Councillor Dickinson referred to section 3.2 of the report and 
commented that it would have been useful for the Panel to receive the 
information by each parish area which would give more of an indication 
where the issues were and if there was movement in an area.   

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=1858


 
632 

 

 
Councillor Dickinson asked for a definition of when an empty property 
commenced.  In response, the Revenues and Benefits Manager 
explained that there were a number of exemptions which did not count 
against the timescale for working out the empty property start date, the 
main being waiting probate where the owner had passed away. 
 
Councillor Long asked how many homes had been brought back into 
use previously.  The Revenues and Benefits Manager explained that 
there was movement in properties being brought back in use but it was 
difficult to determine when a property had become occupied. 
 
The Chair referred to the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) and one 
line which stated there were no equality issues and added that there 
was a reasonable timescale if the report was accepted and went 
forward to complete a full assessment to include the number of 
residents affected.  In response, the Revenues and Benefits Manager 
explained there was a full EIA attached to the Cabinet Report and 
undertook in future to ensure reference was made to this. 
 
Following comments from Councillor Bearshaw, the Chair stated that it 
would be useful if Councillors could be provided with a list of 
exceptions for reference purposes. 
 
The Chair commented that the Panel could request an update in 12 
months’ time. 
 
The Chair made a plea to Cabinet to use this tool to liaise with 
Freebridge Community Housing to raise the issue of the length of time 
taken to deal with void properties and bring them back into use. 
 
Second Homes 
 
Councillor Dickinson declared a pecuniary interest and left the meeting 
during consideration of the second homes element of the report. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager explained that there was an 
Equality Impact Assessment in the Cabinet Report and undertook to 
cross reference it. 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager presented the report and 
explained that for council tax purposes a second home was defined as 
a one which is furnished but which was no one’s main home.  Section 
80 of the Act now allowed the Council to charge a premium of up to 
100% for second homes from 1 April 2025, meaning that taxpayers will 
pay double the standard council tax charge for a second homes.  It was 
reported that there were 3,200 second homes in the borough and 
charging an additional 100% premium on those properties will raise an 
extra £6.5m a year in council tax.  Further details were set out at 
section 4 of the report. 
 



 
633 

 

The Portfolio Holder explained that it the Council retained second 
homes money that this should be invested in the borough and 
commended the report to the Panels to go forward to Cabinet and Full 
Council. 
 
The Leader addressed the Panel and explained that discussions were 
ongoing with North Norfolk District Council who had second homes but 
added that there were other districts who had few second homes.  The 
Panel was advised that negotiations would take place with Norfolk 
County Council in the near future as it would affect budgets going 
forward in 2025. 
 
The Chair invited Councillors attending under Standing Order 34 to 
address the Panel. 
 
Councillor Colwell commented that the report set out a sensible way 
forward and highlighted the importance of bringing back properties into 
occupation for the local community  Councillor Colwell asked if it was 
possible to consider ring-fencing the income to build homes.  In 
response, the Leader advised that this would be a decision of Cabinet 
and Full Council. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded to questions from 
Councillor Bearshaw on information being available to understand the 
trends of second homes. 
 
Councillor Long provided background information as to previous 
arrangements and outlined how the income from second homes could 
help to alleviate the housing pressures by providing affordable homes 
in a variety of ways for local people. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded to questions from 
Councillor Ryves on individual homes potentially being used for 
business purpose and subject to business rates. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded to comments and 
questions from Councillor Ryves on individual homes which might be 
considered either business or income earning not attracting business 
rates and what controls were in place to address this and effect on the 
Council. The Revenues and Benefits Manager undertook to circulate 
the list of properties subject to business rates.  It was explained that 
the Valuation Office controlled whether a property was business rates 
or council tax and advised that the Valuation Office was currently 
undertaking a review and were part of HMRC. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded to questions from 
Councillor Sayers in relation to foreign nationals in the UK who were 
resident elsewhere and how the Council enforced this situation. 
 
Councillor Osborne commented that there had been a useful 
discussion and agreed with the policy and was something that should 



 
634 

 

be a real benefit to West Norfolk.  Councillor Osborne provided an 
overview of the practice adopted in Wales, together with trends 
experienced.  In conclusion, Councillor Osborne stated that he 
supported the proposal. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager responded to questions from 
Councillor Nash on how the Council determined if a foreign national’s 
home was a second home. 
 
Councillor Ring outlined his experience on providing advice on second 
homes over a number of years and added that from a tax point of view, 
if a person changed their main residence to London, upon sale of that 
property would expose themselves to Capital Gains Tax. 
 
Under Standing Order 34, Councillor Bubb commented the second 
home owners who were well off additional tax would not be an issue, 
but those who were no so well off it was easy to change it to a small 
business and get rate relief, etc         In response, the Revenues and 
Benefits Manager explained that the Valuation Office was currently 
working through a list and the Council was monitoring the movement 
between council tax and business rates. 
 
Councillor Parish commented that a principal residence could be 
determined by where the occupants were registered with a doctor. 
 
The Chair summarised the debate of the Panels and highlighted the 
importance of striking a balance and added that there had been a lot of 
talk around people with big properties in the Borough coming up from 
London.  The Chair added that there were also a number of second 
homes where people lived on one area of the Borough and had a 
bolthole on the coast.  Some people had a holiday home for over 20 
years, visited on an annual basis, contributed to the economy and seen 
to be helpful and useful neighbours with an aim to retire in the borough.  
The Chair added that care should be taken with the narrative, 
encourage investment and look at the opportunity to strike a balance. 
 
The Chair expressed concern that if the Council looked to do this 
quickly within a year, the council tax bandings were not included in the 
report and there were also other variables to consider.  The Chair 
concurred with the comments made by Councillors Long and Colwell in 
that the additional money received should be make good use of. 
 
The Chair thanked the Revenues and Benefits Manager for the report. 
 
RESOLVED:  The Panel noted the options available for the premiums 
and agrees to recommend to Cabinet to recommend to Council that: 
 
• The long-term empty premium is charged once a long-term 

property has been empty for one year rather than two years. 



 
635 

 

• The second home premium is introduced from 1 April 2025 at 
the maximum level of 100% to generate the most additional 
income. 

• We work with other Norfolk authorities and Norfolk County 
Council to ensure the maximum possible amount of the 
additional second homes income is returned to those boroughs 
most affected by second home ownership. 

• Authority is delegated to the Revenues and Benefits 
Manager, in consultation with the s151 Officer and Council 
Leader, to agree the technical guidelines for any exceptions 
to the premiums imposed by central government. 

 
The Panel adjourned at 6.19 pm and reconvened at 6.30 pm. 
 

CP96   CABINET REPORT:  COUNCIL COMPANIES FUNDING  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Environment and Community Panel and Regeneration and 
Development Panel was also present for this item. 
 
The Chair explained that the report would be considered in open 
session but the appendices would be discussed in exempt session 
when a resolution would be required to exclude the press and public. 
 
The Panel received a presentation from the Executive Director, Place 
(copy attached to the minutes). 
 
The Chair thanked the Executive Director for the presentation and 
invited questions and comments from the Panels, a summary of which 
is set out below. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business addressed the Panel and outlined the 
broad political objectives. 
 
The Monitoring Officer explained the reason why the appendices to be 
discussed in exempt session were placed at the end of the agenda. 
 
Councillor Long outlined the  decision of companies to provide 
affordable homes/private rented homes.  Councillor Long commented 
that this was a good report to support the decision of the new 
Administration to deliver homes. 
 
Councillor Kemp supported the report but commented on the proposed 
maximum loan of £50m, the Council’s optimum level of £65m and this 
leaving the Council with too little flexibility for borrowing for other 
projects.  In response, the Assistant Director, Resources explained that 
in relation to the prudential borrowing limit, the Council looked at the 
Treasury Management Strategy and this would be taken into account.  
The Assistant Director explained that the capital programme in the 

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=5361


 
636 

 

medium term required up to £200m, the £50m was based on flexibility 
and not the capital programme for the longer term and was subject to 
review going forward. 
 
The Monitoring Officer explained that checks and balances would be 
the role of the new Shareholder Committee and there would be a report 
to decide the creation of a facility to draw down if required. 
 
Councillor Ryves asked a number of questions and made comments, a 
summary of which is set out below: 
 

- Were the correct questions asked of the consultants. 
- £50m debt leaving little flexibility for other borrowing. 
- Subsidy PWLB – 2022 Act. 
- Difference in figures reported by the two consultants. 
- Borrowing by the Companies – if Council provided guarantee 

loan could be obtained. 
- Legacy companies. 
- Cost centres – management fees, etc. 
- Experience of other Councils. 
- Level of risk. 
- Increase in interest rates/impact. 

 
In response to the comments and questions from Councillor Ryves, the 
Monitoring Officer responded to the comments and questions raised by 
Councillor Ryves. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business explained that there was significant 
risk but advice had received from consultants,  The Portfolio Holder 
disagreed with the questions and comments from Councillor Ryves and 
undertook to provide a response in exempt session. 
 
The Leader explained that the objective was to provide homes for local 
people and the Council would therefore continue to build homes with a 
caveat that they would be for local people. 
 
Councillor Long commented on West Norfolk Housing Company who 
had developed a housing scheme on an old nightclub site in King’s 
Lynn to meet an immediate local housing need. 
 
With regard to West Norfolk Property investment had been made to 
provide private rented sector housing to meet the market need. 
 
Councillor Ring added that the private rented sector was failing and 
there had been discussion in Cabinet regarding the Borough Council’s 
role to fulfil the market need.   
 
The Assistant Director, Resources responded to questions and 
comments from Councillor Ryves regarding interest rates. 
 



 
637 

 

Following questions from Councillor Sayers on the loan arrangement, 
the Assistant Director Resources outlined the process to be following 
for loan agreements to companies. 
 
The Executive Director, Place responded to questions from Councillor 
Kemp on the companies being eligible to bring back empty homes into 
occupation.   
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business outlined the constraints faced by the 
companies, but added that these could be reviewed and test the 
viability with officers. 
 
Councillor Ratcliffe declared an interest as a ward councillor of 
companies and added that her personal view was that this had been a 
steep learning curve for new Councillors to look at the risk issues and 
other Councils financial problems. Councillor Ratcliffe stated that a lot 
of work and scrutiny had gone into the companies to encourage 
investment in West Norfolk to benefit residents. 
 
Councillor Ware concurred with the comments made by Councillor 
Ratcliffe and added that as a lawyer and Director of the companies she 
would ensure that full independent advice was received to underpin the 
legal and financial documents to go forward. 
 
Councillor Long commented that he was pleased to hear the Director’s 
views and willingness to take the companies forward. 
 
The Chair summarised the debate and highlighted the importance of 
looking at the building blocks to provide the output of affordable 
housing for local people. 
 
The Chair clarified his comments made at a previous meeting with 
regard to consultants.  
 
The Chair drew attending to Recommendation 3 and added that in his 
view the delegation was open ended and commented that the 
recommendation could be better worded. 
 
Councillor Long comment that he could understand the view of the 
Chair but it was a recommendation to Full Council.  Any 
recommendations from the Panel would feed into Cabinet and Full 
Council so there would be an opportunity for any Councillor to attend 
and ask questions.  Monitoring would be undertaken by the 
Shareholder Committee and that forward plan appeared on every 
Corporate Performance Panel meeting so there would again be an 
opportunity to request an item to be placed on the Panel’s work 
programme. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance reminded the Panel why the 
Shareholder Committee was set up. 
 



 
638 

 

The Chair added that reference to the Shareholder Committee could be 
added to Recommendation 3. 
 
The Monitoring Officer referred to Recommendation 3 and explained 
that any Grant Agreement would be considered by the Shareholder 
Committee and all decisions made by that committee were subject to 
the call-in process. 
 
The Chair advised that the recommendations would be considered in 
exempt session. 
 

CP97   CABINET REPORT:  POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Chief Executive explained that the report presented to Council a 
revised Polling District and Polling Place Review Schedule.  The Panel 
was informed that to ensure that the Council met its statutory 
obligations a Polling District Review had to be carried out once every 
five years.   
 
The Chief Executive advised that there were a small number of 
changes set out in the report. 
 
The Electoral Services Manager was present via Zoom to answer any 
questions. 
 
The Chair thanked the Chief Executive for the report and invited 
questions and comments from the Panel, a summary of which is set 
out below. 
 
Councillor Long commented that he was pleased to note that Fairstead 
PD2 was to be re-integrated into the wider PD1 (Fairstead) polling 
district. 
 
Councillor Jones stated that a way to introduce digitised voting was the 
way to go forward.  The Chief Executive explained that this could not 
be considered as part of this report as it required statutory changes. 
 
RESOLVED:  The Panel supported the recommendations to Full 
Council as set out below: 
 
The attached (APPENDIX) Polling District and Polling Place Review 
Schedule is adopted. 
 
Due to the size of the document – this only includes polling districts 
where either public comments were received or where any changes 
were recommended by the Acting Returning Officer.  All remaining 
Polling Districts will remain unchanged. 
 

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=9741


 
639 

 

CP98   CABINET REPORT: APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY ALDERMEN  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Chair advised that due to the length of the meeting, following 
consultation with officers and the Leader, the item would be removed 
from the agenda but the Leader would permit Councillors to attend 
Cabinet on 15 January to ask any questions. 
 

CP99   CABINET REPORT WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Chair advised that due to the length of the meeting, following 
consultation with officers and the Leader, the item would be removed 
from the agenda but the Leader would permit Councillors to attend 
Cabinet on 15 January to ask any questions. 
 

CP100   COUNCILLOR REQUEST - 2021 TAXI TESTING CONTRACT  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
The Chair invited Councillor Nash to present his request. 
 
Councillor Nash proposed that this item be considered in exempt 
session under the Local Government Act section 100A. 
 
The Monitoring Officer asked Councillor Nash to confirm which 
paragraph of Schedule 12A he referred to and added that the request 
was for the Panel to consider. 
 
Councillor Mrs Spikings advised that she as a member of the Panel 
had received a lengthy report shortly before the meeting and stated 
that this was not sufficient time to consider the report and make an 
informed decision. 
 
Councillor Nash outlined why in his view the item should be considered 
at tonight’s meeting. 
 
Councillor Nash proposed that an Informal Working Group be set up to 
consider his request. 
 
The Chair explained that the role of the Panel was to look at how the 
previous contract had performed and a report on the new contract 
would be considered by the Environment and Community Panel.  A 
report from the Corporate Performance Panel on performance, lessons 
learned etc could then be fed into the Environment and Community 
Panel. 
 

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=9924
https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=9946
https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=9955


 
640 

 

The proposal to set up an Informal Working Group was seconded by 
Councillor Lintern and on being put to the vote was carried. 
 
RESOLVED:  An Informal Working Group be set up as set out above.  
The Chair undertook to email the Panel to determine membership. 
 
 
 

CP101   PORTFOLIO HOLDERS QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION  
 

There were no Portfolio Holders Questions. 
 

CP102   CABINET FORWARD DECISIONS LIST  
 

The Panel noted the Cabinet Forward Decisions List. 
 
The Chair invited the Panel to email himself with any items for 
consideration to be placed on the work programme. 
 

CP103   SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN  
 

The Panel noted the Shareholder Committee Forward Plan. 
 
The Chair invited the Panel to email himself with any items for 
consideration to be placed on the work programme. 
 

CP104   PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2023/2024  
 

The Panel noted the work programme. 
 
The Chair invited the Panel to email himself with any items for 
consideration to be placed on the work programme. 
 

CP105   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

The next meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel will be held on 
26 February 2023 at 4.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn. 
 

CP106   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

Click here to view a recording of this item on You Tube 
 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act, 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 

https://youtu.be/_HoQxgEMiJI?t=10726


 
641 

 

disclosure of exempt information ad defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

CP107   EXEMPT ITEM:  CABINET REPORT:  COUNCIL COMPANIES 
FUNDING - APPENDICES  
 

The Panel considered the exempt Appendices. 
 
Officers and Portfolio Holders responded to questions and comments 
from the Panels. 
 
The Chair drew the Panel’s attention to the recommendations set out in 
the report. 
 
The Chair proposed an amended to Recommendation to insert 
Shareholder Committee (after the word Monitoring Officer) which was 
seconded by Councillor Jones and agreed by the Panels. 
 
Councillors Ratcliffe, Ryves and Ware abstained against the 
amendment to Recommendation 3. 
 
RESOLVED:  The Panel supported the recommendation to Cabinet 
and Full Councill as set out below, subject to an amendment to 
Recommendation 3 highlighted in bold: 
 
Cabinet resolves 
 
1. To note the contents of the Report setting out (i) the advice of 

Grant Thornton, PS Tax, Link Group Treasury Services and 
Ensor Accountants relating to the structure options for financial 
support to WNPL and WNHC (the Companies), and (ii) the 
Council’s current analysis as regards the best options. 

 
2. To offer a Drawdown facility to the Companies (comprising a mix 

of loan facilities and repayable grant agreements, and which 
may include debt-equity arrangements and/or the extension of 
current lease arrangements), with an overall lending cap of £50 
million. 

 
3. To give delegated authority to the Executive Director (Place), in 

consultation with Portfolio Holder for Business, the Section 151 
Officer, the Monitoring Officer and the Shareholder 
Committee, to agree the final terms of the Drawdown facility 
with the Companies. 

 
Recommendations to Full Council 
 
4. To give delegated authority to the Section 151 Officer in 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Business to amend the 



 
642 

 

Capital Strategy for 2023-2024 to reflect the approved 
Drawdown facility to the Companies. 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.11 pm 
 

 


	Minutes

